Omnibus Multidiscipline Engineering Services (OMES)

“Issuance of responses to questions/comments received on Draft Request for Proposal-NNG11281303R”

	Questions or Comments
	Responses

	1.  L.14 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions

The instruction L.14 (a) (5) requires the submission of a “matrix showing where in the proposal the technical requirements of the SOW and the evaluation criteria of this RFP are satisfied”.  Given that the instructions for Mission Suitability have no direct response to the SOW, should the Offeror disregard this statement?  If not, then what does the government want to see in the matrix?
	1.  Yes, instruction L.14 (a) (5) will be amended to delete this reference for a compliance matrix to be submitted.

	2.   L.16 Mission Suitability Proposal Instructions, Subsection 3., Subfactor B – Management Approach, and M.3 Mission Suitability Factor

The Instruction L.16, Subfactor B, 3rd paragraph, and M.3 Subfactor B, 4th paragraph requires that the Offeror identify significant subcontractors interfaces and provide data on their assigned roles and Offeror’s management methods.  Does the government want to see the interfaces with all team member subcontractors?
	2.  Yes. 


	3. Section L.17 Cost Volume (DEC 2010), 2. BOE, page 103

Depending upon the complexity of the Representative Task Order (RTO) and the potential for the inclusion of multiple subcontractors, we request the government consider increasing the BOE page count to 50 pages.
	3.  Because of the complexity and number of the RTOs, the BOE page count will be increased from 35 to 50 pages.

	4. DRFP Paragraph L.17.2(1), Pages 102 – 104.  
The instructions for pricing the RTO and submitting the BOE do not include any direction for development of a WBS.  At what level WBS should the BOEs and pricing be submitted?
	4.  It is up to the Contractor to determine the lowest level WBS that will adequately address its approach to a given RTO.

	5.  DRFP Paragraph L.17.2(1), p.102’

The RFP provides instructions for Attachment B that indicate that onsite and offsite rates should be clearly delineated.  For the purposes of pricing an off-site facility, will the Government please provide an estimate of the FTE count expected to be housed at contractor facilities?
	5.  Since bulk of the OMES contractor personnel are envisioned to be on-site, we expect that the contractor management and support staff as well as specialized manufacturing skills/capabilities to be located off-site. Since the latter varies amongst various contractors, it will be up to the contractor to provide its capabilities along with costs for maintaining such roles.

	6. DRFP Paragraph L.17.2(1), BASIS OF ESTIMATES (BOE), Pages 103 – 104.
Would the Government consider 35 pages of BOE, submitted only in the Prime’s volume but inclusive of all Prime and Significant Subcontractor BOE inputs and related narrative/estimating methods/quantities, to be compliant with the requirements of the DRFP cost volume instructions?  
	6.  Yes

	7. Attachment D (DD Form 254) 

Please identify which agency will hold the SCI clearances.
	7. The agency processing the contractor’s clearances will hold the clearances.  The CIA processes NASA’s clearances, therefore, the contractor would have their clearances processed there as well.  
 

	8.   Attachment D (DD Form 254)
Please confirm that the prime contractor will process the Secret and Top Secret Clearances but only prepare the paperwork for the SCI clearances.
	 8.  No, the contractor is required to obtain the required clearances, the Government has no responsibility in obtaining clearances for contractor employees.  The contractors Facility Security Officers should be knowledgeable in the clearance process.


	9.  Section E.5 52.246-11 Higher Level Contract Quality Requirement. (FEB 1999), page 8: 

(http://gsfcmanagementsystem.gsfc.nasa.gov/fundamentals.cfm)" This link to the compliance document does not appear to be accurate.  Can NASA provide a copy of the document or a URL that links to it?
	9.  The link provided in clause E.5, Higher Level Contract Quality Requirement,  is correct.

	10. E.5 52.246-11 HIGHER-LEVEL CONTRACT

The use of “or” in the above clause implies that the bidding contractor is not required to have the (AS) 9100 certification, but fabrication and assembly of hardware is part of the Draft RFP SOW.  Would it be more appropriate to change the “or” to “and” and change the sentence to be The Contractor shall comply with the higher-level quality standards selected below?
	10 . No. If the Prime will manufacture hardware, then it is required to have the (AS) 9100 certification. If only its subcontractors will manufacture hardware, then the Prime does not have to maintain such certification but its subcontractors do.

	11.  F.4 Place of Performance - Services, page 10:
This section states: “The services to be performed under this contact shall be performed at the following location(s): NASA Goddard Space Flight Center, the Contractor’s off-site facilities, and as specified in Task Orders issued.” Please describe the work to be performed at Contractor’s off-site facilities so Offerors may plan for office space, desks, chairs, conference rooms, computers, and the like.  How many personnel are to be located at the OMES Contractor’s off-site facilities?
	11. See response #6.


	12.   Section L.14(a)(1), table, p.86 and L.18(a), p.106:
“Prime Offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts….” Given the 25-page limitation for Section L.18(a) Information from the Offeror, providing the Government requested information for all contracts may far surpass the 25-page limitation, ....If the Government is concerned about the depth and breadth of expertise and capabilities, Offeror suggests the Government consider requesting a list of related or relevant contracts in Section L.18(a) while only providing details (i.e., bullet items 1 – 15) for up to five most relevant past performance contracts.  Would the Government consider limiting the past performance information from Offerors to up to the five most relevant contracts?  
	12.  No. Section L.14(a)(1) states that the Prime Offeror  shall furnish information on its recent contracts for similar efforts. It will be up to the Prime to determine which contracts are relevant and will be submitted to be compliant with the page limitation requirement.

	13.  DRFP paragraph L.18(a), Page 106.
Given that the OMES contract is a full and open opportunity with a maximum value of $400M (or $80M/year average; inclusion of DRFP Paragraph B.6(e), Page 3 would make OMES >$100M/year), this threshold for "similar efforts" appears to be too low. The corporate organization and business systems required to manage a $20M/year contract differ greatly from a >$80M/year contract, and therefore the criteria for "similarity" should be closer to $80M/year. Additionally, contracts completed up to 5 years ago may have minimal relevance toward representing what the bidding entity is currently capable of.  Would the Government consider modifying this instruction to read  "…contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $40M that your company has had within the last 3 years of the RFP release date"?
	13.  The past performance instructions will remain the same for the Final RFP. 

	14. DRFP paragraph L.18(a), Page 106.
A $12M threshold for "Significant Subcontractors" equates to 15% of the contract value which could limit past performance data to the offeror and at most 2 "Significant Subcontractors" - likely one Large Business and one Small Business. In order to best provide the Offerors with the ability to demonstrate capabilities across the entire SOW and across the entire Team within the Past Performance Volume, we encourage the Government to reconsider the threshold for "Significant Subcontractors".  We suggest a reduced level of $8M, which is effectively 10% of the maximum annual ordering value of the contract.
	14. The past performance instructions will remain the same for the Final RFP.

	15. L.18 Past Performance Volume (SEP 2010), (a) Information From The Offeror, page  106:

Due to the depth and breadth of the RFP SOW requirements, we believe that addressing the contribution of non-significant subcontractors would be of considerable value to the evaluation of the total team experience level. If the Government is concerned about the depth and breadth of expertise and capabilities of the entire proposed team, we suggest the Government consider requesting a list of related or relevant contracts in Section L18(a) while only providing full citations for the offeror and the significant subcontractors as defined in the RFP.  We also suggest that this listing of contracts be excluded from the page count for the volume.
	15.  The past performance instructions will remain the same for the Final RFP.  

	16.  L.18 Past Performance Volume (SEP 2010), (a) Information From The Offeror, page  106:

Prime Offerors shall furnish the information requested below for all of your most recent contracts (completed and ongoing) for similar efforts with a minimum average annual cost/fee incurred of $20M that your company has had within the last  five (5) years of the RFP release date. Indicate which contracts are most related (i.e. similar in size, content, and/or complexity) and….”  Given the 25-page limitation for the Past Performance Volume, providing the Government requested information for all contracts of the prime and significant subcontractors may far surpass the 25-page limitation. We recommend that the Government remove the reference to "all contracts" and allow the offeror to determine the appropriate number of cited contracts to meet the requirement.
	16. The past performance instructions will remain the same for the Final RFP.  The past performance instructions request information for all recent contracts for similar efforts within the criteria (most related in size, content, and/or complexity) established in the past performance volume.  

	17. L.18 Past Performance Volume (SEP 2010),
Given the significant amount of information that must be supplied for the prime contractor and potentially multiple significant subcontractors, we request the page count of the Past Performance Volume be increased to 40 pages.
	17. The past performance page limitation will remain at 25 pages for the Final RFP.  


	18.   Draft SOW, paragraph 1H
Software Services and paragraph IL., Science Data Processing Technology Services are almost identical and appear only to cover Science Data Services.  Will the task description for 1H be changed in the final release of the SOW?
	18.  Section 1H will be eliminated.

	19.  Draft SOW, Section 3J
Draft SOW, Section 3J titles the paragraph Mission Assurance and Systems Safety.  The associated tasks are titled performance assurance. Should the reference paragraph be titled Performance Assurance and System Safety?
	  19. No. Performance is one part of mission assurance, and hence the paragraph title was meant to be broader in its context.

	20. DRFP SOW, page 2, third paragraph

This scope of work appears to involve working with NASA Centers other than GSFC and probably includes NOAA.  To further substantiate this observation,  DRFP SOW FUNCTION 1, Subpart  N, last paragraph (page 12) states “The contractor may be required to work with other NASA Centers and Government agencies to accommodate hardware interface and other in-space servicing requirements.” 1. Would GSFC consider replacing the term “GSFC” in DRFP Paragraph L.13(b)(1), page 83 with the term “NASA or NOAA.”?  2. Would GSFC consider replacing the term “GSFC” in DRFP Paragraph L.13(c), page 84 with the term “NASA or NOAA”?
	20 .  In both referenced areas, "GSFC" will be replaced with the term "NASA."

	21.   SOW 3.F.14 

Environmental Testing Specific Task Item 14, page 34, uses the term E-M.  Please define the term E-M.
	21 . Electro-magnetic

	22. Attachment D (DD Form 254) 

The DD254, in Section 10 shows that the contractor will not be required to access SCI material.  RFP Attachment A, SOW Paragraph 3.F.15, page 35, states “In addition, some projects require the involved staff to hold Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) clearances based on current single-scope background investigations.  Some special projects must be accomplished in a Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) facility and the ability to access to an SCI facility and material is required.  All contractor staff providing support to these special projects must obtain and maintain SCI clearances.”  Please correct the inconsistency on security requirements.
	22. “ Section 10 CONTRACTOR WILL REQUIRE ACCESS TO:” Block 10.e.(1) is checked yes which indicates that the contractor WILL REQUIRE ACCESS TO SCI MATERIAL.  See Page 3 for “Additional Security Requirements” that sets forth the requirements for SCI access.  


	23.  Attachment D (DD Form 254) 

As stated, the DD254 require the contractor to have a secret clearance.  Per the DD254, is the prime contractor required to have a cleared facility?  If so, at what level: Secret, Top Secret or SCI?
	23.     With regards to the facility clearance --

BLOCK 1.a. states the required level of facility clearance required for this contract is Top Secret.  Per the Defense Security Services, which processes contractors for Facility Clearance Level (FCL) based upon procurement need, issues FCL's, and monitors the contractors continued eligibility in the NISP.  “A Facility Security Clearance is an administrative determination that a facility is eligible to access classified information at the same or lower classification category as the clearance being granted. The Facility Security Clearance may be granted at the Top Secret, Secret or Confidential level.”  A facility clearance is not something that is obtained in a short period of time FCL.  A contractor or prospective contractor cannot apply for its own facility clearance. A procuring activity of the Government, or cleared contractor in the case of subcontracting, may request the clearance when a definite, classified procurement need has been established.

With regards to the employee clearances –

BLOCK 13 should be corrected to show that “In performance of this contract, some personnel may require access to classified information up to the SECRET TOP SECRET/SCI level.  The Contractor must have sufficient number of cleared employees assigned duties under this contract to be able to complete all classified work assignments up to and including SECRET TOP SECRET/SCI.”  The DD 254 was revised from secret to top secret/SCI and this was not corrected when changes were made to the DD 254.  Sorry, my oversight 



	24. Attachment D, DD Form 254/SOW Paragraph M. Robotic Technology Services, top of Page 12.

Block 1.a states that a SECRET Facility Clearance is required.  Block 10.a states that the contractor will require access to Communications Security (COMSEC) Information.  Block 13 states “…some personnel may require access to classified information up to the SECRET Level.”.....The SOW states “Qualified personnel with security clearances at the Top Secret (TS) and/or Top Secret/Sensitive Compartmented Information (TS/SCI) and above levels may be required for certain contractor positions to support satellite service task orders.”  Would the Government please address the disconnect between the DD Form 254 and the Draft SOW?
	24.  Attachment D, DD Form 254 has been updated to reflect a Top Secret Clearance.  

	25. Exhibit B - Cost Charts, Exhibit B-2, Representative Task Plan Summary

In preparing the RTO, we recommend that the Government consider a straight 12 month performance period.  It is our belief that this will insure that all contractors will be evaluated across the same "proposed fiscal year boundaries" Has the Government identified the proposed start date for the purposes of RTO pricing?  
	25.  Yes. All the dates are stated within the RTOs.

	26.  Exhibit B - Cost Charts, Exhibit B-6, Summary of Recurring Other Direct Costs (ODCs)/Cost Estimating Relationships (CERs)

Can the offeror assume that on-site personnel will be provided all necessary tools/material/office supplies/ computers/ access to copiers?
	26.   Yes.

	 27. Surveillance Plan

Section 2.4.4, page 10, Participation in OMES Contractor Configuration Management Processes states the following: “AETD personnel monitor network performance and activities with metrics described in Section 5.” Please identify the referenced networks and provide Section 5.
	27.  Surveillance Plan will be updated to correct any ambiguity or missing references.

	28.   Surveillance Plan
Section 3.1, page 10, states: “There exists specific insight areas that the Government and the OMES contractor shall concentrate on.  These include but are not limited to Project/Business Management; Networks Management; Physical and Information Technology (IT) Security; Property Management, Safety; Configuration Management (CM); and Quality Assurance (QA).” Networks Management does not appear in Table 1 or the body of the Surveillance Plan.  Please define Networks Management.
	28.  Surveillance Plan will be updated to correct any ambiguity or missing references.

	29.  General

The Draft RFP did not provide labor categories.  We believe the Government will have a difficult time to perform accurate cost comparison of offers given the high likelihood of each offeror proposing different labor categories.  We recommend that the Government reconsider the requirement for the prime contractors to provide their own labor categories.  A single set of labor categories established by the Government by combining the labor categories of the following contracts: MSES, METS, SES, and ESES would provide the baseline for the multidisciplinary requirements of OMES.  The Government could provide an option for each offeror to augment this common as needed?
	29.   No. The present requirement holds for submission of Position Descriptions by the offerors.

	30.  General
The effective OMES contractor would be required to participate in design reviews, problem assessments, and other venues where vendor proprietary information would be shared.  How would the government convenience the vendor that allowing a potential hardware competitor access to this information is acceptable?
	30. This will be addressed in the offeror's OCI mitigation plan. Any shortfalls in the plan shall be addressed by the offeror for the acceptance by the Government.

	31.  General
Request the Bidder’s Library include task order statements of work and project and mission schedules for any tasks that are targeted for OMES. Will NASA establish a bidders’ technical reference library for the OMES procurement? If so, when?
	 31. NASA will not establish a bidder’s technical reference library.  OMES is a new contract, and it has not yet been determined what tasks will be issued or anticipated by our Center's projects.  
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